: HISTURICAL SKETCH OF
CHRISTIAN SCIENCE ORGANIZATION AT THE
UNIVERSITY OFF WASHLNGTON

In the sumer of 1917, several students from the University
of Vashington, two of whom had been members of Christian Science
societics at other universities, met to discuss the question of
starting such an organization at the University of Viashington under
Article 23, Sechion 8, of the Manual of The Mother Church. They ob-
tained information and encouragement by writing to seweral organiza-
tions at colieges throughout the country and by talking to a young
woman whe was the secretary of the Smith College Christian Science
Society. Correspondence with The Mother Church informed them that
the students themselves should draw up a constitution and by-laws
which. should then te sent to the Board of Directors of The Mother
Church for approval.

Mr. Arthur Priest, then Dean of Men at the’ University of
Washington, was favorable to the idea and the first official meeting
was held at his home. Officers were elected as follows: Eleanor Hop-
pock, president and reader; Florence Pettit, vice president; Rosamond
Par-ons, recording secretary, Merle Childs, corresponding secrenary;
Ernest Oertel, treasurer, and Ruth Bragdon and aAdele Reoves, "other
members of the Executive Committee," Until 1923, the president fillied
the office of reader.' Appointments for the following cormittees were
made: membership. distribution, library, notices, welcome and recep—
tion, After the constitution and by-laws were approved, the card of
the new Christian Science Society of the University of Washington ap-

peared in the Christian Science Journal in the spring of 1918.



laving established the Organization, the new members eagerly
sought to expand the scope of their activity. The first meetings were
held at the homes of the members every second and fourth Sunday of the
month at 3 P.M. After the end of the first quarter, meetings were
chanced to alternate Sundays. In January, 1918, the membership appoint-
ed Miss Parsons and Mr. Oertel fo confer with Comptroller liervert Te
Condon concerning a meeting place on the campus. Mr. Condon later be-
came Dean of Men and was always friendly in representing our position
to the school authorities. The secretary was requested to write to Dr.
Henry Suzzalo, President of the University, for permission to hold test—
imonial meetings week days on the campﬁs. Unremitting metaphysical work
had its results, for approval was gained and meetings after January,
1918, convened in one of the music rooms in the basement of Meany Hall
on alternate Thursdays from 7:15 to 8 P.M.

.Among the early activities on record was the immediate response

to The Mother Church call for contributions to the Camp Welfare Fund.

A1l donations were voluntary and were attended with expressions of grati
tuds for the privilege of helping in the world conflict. A short time
later, contrilutions were also set aside for the Christian Science
Benevolenﬁ Fund and the General Fund of The Mother Church. The Monitor
Distribution Committee tecame active at this time, circulating the Moni-
tor among professors and students on the campus, and presenting a sub-
scription to the main library and to the law library. A lecture committee
likewise began to function.

By the end of the first year (October, 1917, to June, 1918) the
small Society had indeed proved its usefulness. New students were stead-

ily attending and graduating students applied for alumni membershipe
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The initial funds of the Society amounted to $50.00 (ten members do-
nating 45.00 each.) The financial statement at the end of the year
showed 528.05 as a balance on hand.

In July, 1918, the Society held its first summer school
meeting, Since that time, summer school meetings have been a regular
part of the Organization's program, inspiring those in school, teach-
ers as well as regular students, and memiers of the Organization not
in schoole.

As progress continued, the Society took definite steps to
inform the campus éf its activities. In 1919, notices were filed in
the University of Washington Daily, the campus newspaper, inviting the
University public to attend the meetings which were held then every
Thursday evening at 7:30 P.M. Notices were also placed on the bulletiﬂﬂ
voards of Denny and Commerce Halls. This step at first required con-
siderable demonstration to prevent the notices from being torn off or
mutilated, but in later years opposition has largely disappeared.

The first lecture of the Society was delivered W Dr. John M.
Tutt, C.S.B., on February 25, 1920, in Room 310, Denny Hall. Constant
metaphysical work was needed to meeﬁ discouragement which would have
robbed the members of this long-anticipated privilege. This work helped
the memoers in being alert to protect all their activities. Frequently
they would come for their regular weekly ﬁeetings and find the door lock-
ed, but newer once has there been a failure to hold a meeting in the en-—
tire history of the Crganization, the members having demonstrated that
divine love protects them, and each time a way was found. Moreower,
meetings hawe always been held regardless of all-University social func-

tions which might be scheduled on the same night.
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Tn the latter part of 1920, the Society considercd the cstav-
lishment of two chapter houses similar to fraternity and sororit houses,
but after corresponding with The Hother.Church, the matter was dropped.

Tt has been felt that social functions are not a part of the Organiza-
tion's official program.

Among details of procedure which differed from those now in
effect was the requirement that applicants for membership must be memoers
of The Mother Church and of a branch church. This requirement was in effect
up tb 1922. it is also interesting to note that the Executive Committee
seleéted the éubjedt for the reading of each ﬁeek, and for a time, read—
ings from the desk were taken from all of Mrs. Eddy's vritings, in addi-
tion to Science and Health and the Bible.

In the school year 1920-1921, twro lectures were given by the
Society, one by Bliss Knapp, Novembter 23, 1920, at L P.M. in Bagley Hall, )5
and the other by Professor Hermann Hering, March 3, 1921, at 12 noon in
233 Pnilosophy Hall. Mr. Enapp's lecture was paid for by the Trustees
under the Will of Mary Baker Eddy, while Professor Hering's lecture was
paid for by funds contributed to the Society. During this year, the
Society also maintained an Accommodations Committee to help students find
rooms and work. In 1921, a building fund was established for the purpose
of eventually acquiring a building for the meetings. This plan was dropped
for a time, howewr, and was not again resumed until 1928.

The next few years brought many new developments. In November,
1923, meetings were held Tueéday evenings at 7:30 but this was changed back
to Thursday evening in May, 192L. The lecture by Judge Frederick C. Hill
vas given at Third Church instead of on the campus. In l92h; meetings were

neld in the lfusic Hall for a short time because of repair work taking place
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in Meany Hall, then, in 1925, due to increased attepdance, the mect—

ing place was moved to a larger room, 310 Home Economics Hall. The
membership record of this year showed that the Society had grovm from
ten to thirty active memters, with one faculty member, Miss Helen Rhodes.

Al hough membership had increased considerably, there was a
lack of hother Church members to fill all offices and it was sometimes
necessary to unite the offices of president and reader, and also re-
cording secretary and corresponding secretary, until new members be-—
cane availablé through special elections. The Organization has always
been grateful; however, that when the time for election came, there
were enough Mother Church members to carry on, so that there has never
been a lapse of activitye.

Since 1927, subjects for readings from the desk have been se-
lected by the reader, rather than by the Executive Committee. A Peace
and Harmony Cormittee was formed in 1928, consisting of four or five
nembers, to work metaphysically on protlems of the Society along the
lines of growth, gratitude, and harmomny.

Beginning in February 1928, meetings were temporarily held in
the Sunday School rooms of Third Church, owing to rules prohibiting
religious meetings on the campus. Duri ng Fall quarter of 1928, however,
the weekly meetings were again permitted on the campus. Professor
Yermann S. Hering, who delivered the lecture for this year, gave the
rembers the first round tahble discussion with a lecuurer. A complete
set of lirs. Eddy's works in morocco leather and a Bible were presented

to the University of Washington library and a subscription to the lionitor

P

to the Reference department. In 1929, the name Christian Science Socicty /4
Ve v

of the University of Washington was changed to Christian Science Organi-
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zation at the University of Washington, arter approval had becn gained
rrom The liother Church. At this time, the demonstrétion was made to
purchase a piano for use at the meetings.

As a result of pressure exerted.ly a campus group of athelsts,
the University administration was forced, in the fall of 1930, to re-
scind its permission to religioﬁs groups to meet on the campus, the
basis for this action being a provision in the State Constitution pro-
hibiting the use of state property for religious purpoées. Dean H. T
Condon explained the situation to members of the Organization and invit-
"ed our group to take the lead moving off the campus. They accepted his
invitation. A few meetings were neld in the Sunday School room of Third
Church but then the meeting place was changed to Eagleson Hall, The YMCA
Building. »

in 1931, in addition to the regular work, special distribation
work of Christian Science literature was carried on in cooperation with
the Joint Literature Distribation Committee of Churches and Societies
of Seattle.

The year 1932-1933 proved to be a period of alteration as well
as of important accomplishments. An article was added to the Constitu-
tion stating that "only memters of The lMNother Church shall elect officers
of this Organization, amend the By-Laws, or vote on other questions of
policy." A provision for two readers was also made at this -time to alter-
nately conduct the meetings. Contributions of two weekly meetings were
sent to the Publishing House Fund, and in 1933, a Radio fund was estab—
1ished to assist First Church of Christ, Scientist, Seattle, in the
broadcasts of Sunday evening services. The Organization also secured

Articles of Incorporation, thus conforming to the state law of Washington



tnat all organizations must be incorporated in order to hold property
and build thereon. This step completed, it was pointed ouv that
metaphysical work on the part of each member would result in acquiring
a building of our own. The Building Committee met regularly, and the
Organization had a small building Fund which grevw slowly bub continually.
| During the spring of 1933 the Iiterature Distribution Committee
was very active. The committee sent copies of The Christian Science
Monitor, with appropriate articles marked, to a number of University
féculty members, following up with letters asking if subscriptions were
desired. Another project was the supplyiné of Monitors and Sentinels to
two U. S. Navy destroyers visiting the city.

A notable achievement in 1934 was the drawing up and adoption of
a set of Rules and Regulations which supplemented the by-laws of the Or-
ganization, and outlined the duties and functions of all officers and
committees in complete detail. Also, a set of readers! books, with
metal markers, was purchased for the use of the readers.

On the Sunday afternoon before the fall quarter began in 1935,
the first open house for new students interested in Christian Science was
held. All students registering their religious préference as Christian
Science were personally invited, and at the reocsption memoers and new-—
comers became acquainted. Questions about the Organization were answer-
ed, refreshments were serwed, and the occasion concluded with the singing
of hymns.

Another innovation of this year waé a round table discussion,
following the year's first business meeting, between the Executive Commit-—
tee and all new members, as well as older members interested. Here the

structure, functions, purposes, and ideals of the Organization were ex-—
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plained. The new memlors welcomed this opportuni*oj’to cet a clear and
complete picture of the Organization from the very bteginning of their
membership, and to tecome better acquainted with their fellow mCmOErS.
Beginning in the spring quarter of 1936,.the regular weekly
Thursday evening meetings were supplemented by a Tuesday afternoon meet-—
ing held twice a montﬂ at L:15. The purpose of the additional meet-
ings, at which the readings were the same as on the corresponding Thurs-—
day, was to meet the need of certain students unable to attend on Thurs-
day evenings. The Tuésday meetings were discontimed two years later.
Alert activiﬁy oh the part of the membership trought much progress
during 1939-40 school year. Ior the first time in sixteen years a second
lecture was given, by Miss Margaret Morrison. At the membership meeting
at which the decision was made to giwe this lecture, partvicularly out of
oratitude to the Trustees under the Will of lary Baker Eddy for giving
us one lecture a year for all the past years, it was found necessary to
raise one hundred dollars in addition to the amount in the lecture fund.
Unsigned pledges made by the members at this meeting, ranging from fifty
cents to ten dollars, amounted to exactly one hundred dollars, and the
actual contributions later exceeded t his amount. Increased friendliness
+oward Christian Science on the campus was evidenced by publication of
a short excerpt from the lecture in the college daily paper. Although
advance publicity on lectures had been obtained in the paper in the
past, this was the first time a lecture had been quoted. /
New commitbe work was introduced at this time, by the establish-—
ment of Honitor Circulation and Advertising Information Committees, and
by the appointment of anlAssistant Christian Science Committee on Publi-

cation. Through the latter, copies of the Powell and Ramsey biographies
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of lirs. Zddy were giwen to the University library, supplemeniing irS.
Tddy's complete worlks and the V/ilbur biograpny already therc, and a
vearts subscription to the Monitor was given to the University YiiCia
Memters repqrted to the Committee any textbook or lecture material
attacking Christian Science.

Yet another achievement of the year 1936 was the organization'
of the alumni for the purpose of working toward a building to house the
Organization. In December the Alumni Building Committee was formed.

The first pian of financial support, undertaken immediately, was the
pledging of the amount of sixfy dollars each by a number of alumni, to
be contributed to the Building Fund within five years. This committeo
was a semi-indeppendent one; it elected its own officers and held per-—
iodic meetings of the alumni to stimulate interest and support for the
oroject, both metaphysical and financial. One feature of the plan of
de wlopment was that no building would be undertaken until adequate pro-—
vision was made for its continued maintenance. This alumni éctivity
gave new impetus to the building project. The need for a building was
apparent as the Organization was not permitted on the campus and it was
difficult to find fully suitable quarters for the meetings and other
activities off the campus.

About this time the practice of holding round table discussions
with the members of the Board of Lectureship who gave the annual lectures
was discontimied. This event had been much aﬁticipated and enjoyed by
the members, but out of consideration for the heavy demands made on the
lecturers it was thought wise to abandon the custom.

An outstanding activity of the year 1938 was a most successful

Monitor exhibit. Just btefore this exhibit a certain lagging of interest



in committee work was apparent, members stating that they did not haw
time for it. Instead of accepting this suggestion,'more wiork, in the form
of preparation for this exhibit, was assigned, and the whole-hearted re—
sponse dispelled the mesmeric wlief. Originally scheduled to be held
for three days late in May, the project received such an enthusiastic re-—
ception by University students and Seattle church memters that at the
special request of the YMCA officers who were proud to have the exhibitv
in their building, the exhibit was held for two more days.

With a "progress!" theme the dominating feature, the exhibit
gave Organization members an opportunity to work in an activity both time-
1y and helpful in class work. Students were appointed, according to their
special interests and studies, to committees on Science and invention,
homg, advertising, sports, feature articles, current news, music, trans-
portation, theatre, art, finance, novelties, education, and children's
page. As examples of the resourcefulness displayed, the current news com-
mittee vrepared a large map of the world with a novel presentation of
Yonitor clippings about each country. The home committee made a small
cardboard model home, while the education cormittee featured a "little red
schoolhouse". The theatre committee borrowed some puppets from the Uni-
versity Drama Department. All this gave atmosphere to the many posters
displaying the varied features of the Monitor. Publicity was forthcoming
by front page stories in the University Daily for two days, and by announce-
ments in the local churches. Fruition of this project was a better ac-
guaintance with the Organization on the part of the Christian Scientists
of Seattle; also, the attention of marmy non-Scientists of the University
was focused on the Monitor,

During this year it was found advisable to have a journalism
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student who was a memler of the Organization maice personal contact
yAth the editor of the Daily, and write all articles concerning
Organization activities, such as those mentioned above. This not
only insured accurate presentation, bul cuaranteed that no material
would be overlooked.

In January of 19L0 it was found necessary to hold the meet-
ings in the Sunday School room of Third Church of Christ, Scientist,
located near the campus. This was only a temporary arrangement, how-
ever, as the meetings were returned to Eaglegon Hall, the YMCA build-
ing in April.

The school year 1939-L0 was one in which the demonstration of
giving two lectures in one year was again made. Mr. Frank Bell de-
livere& the first in December, and Dr. John If. Tutt the second in
April. Many testimonies of healing were given in the Organization
neetings as a result of these lectures. During the Thanksgiving season
of this year a basket of provisions was provided for a needy family
recommended by the local Reading Room.

with the coming of World War II, many students were drafted
into the armed services but activities contimied. A number of the
military personnel stationed at the University for training were active
in the Organization. The giving of the annual lecture in 1942, by Dr.
Delange, was a most harmonious and joyous unfoldment, and an interest-
ing result of the thoroughness of the preparatvory work was that the
induction into armed service of the student scheduled to introduce Dr.
Delange was delayed until the day following the lecture.

In 1943 the Organization sought permission to distritute

Christian Science lonitors to the houses of all Navy men on the campus,
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comprising four former women's residence halls and thirteen fra-
ternity houses. A University ruling against such relicious activ—
ities at a State institution was at first invoked but a happy solu-
tion was worked oub when it was determined that the buildings taken
over Yy the Navy were no longer under the jurisdiction of the Univer-—
sity. The distribution of Monitors was cérried out by Third Church
as a legitimate part of their general distribution progranm.

In the summer quarter of 1943, a series of metaphysical meet-
ings in the interest of building were held. These student meetings
continued during the regular school year and in lfarch 194ly, an open
meeting for students, alumni, and friends of the Organizahbion was held
to explore the attitude of the Iield toward assisting in the project
of purchasing property for an Organization building. Encouraged by
the interest shown, the Building Committee proceeded to investigate
all available property near the campus.

The year 19LL-LS was a wery busy one for the small group of
students comprising the war—depleted memtership of the Organization.

A very desirable_g}gggjpﬁiproperty was located by the 3Building Com-—
nittee. Realizing the need for continuity and experience in manag-
ing the building project, the student members of the Organization
amended their by-laws to establish a Trusteeship, and appointed three
alumni memters (later increased to five) as Trustees to assume the
necessary responsibilities. The former Alumni Building Cormittee ras
discontinued as a separate unit, and a unified 3uilding Committee com-—
posed of five alumni and five student members was formed.

With the anproval of this committee, the Trustees began the
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purchase in March, 1945, of the selected property located &t h}OS -
15th Awnue N. E., just across the street from thelcampus. Composed
of two lots, with a large dwelling house on one, this plot was of
adequate size for the future building, and most advantageously located.
fn initial down payment of three thousand dollars was made, leaving a .
balance of twelwe thousand dollars. This mortgage was carried by a
seventy—-Tive dollar monthly pajment received from renting the house
but extra payments on the priﬁcipal were made as contributions accumu-—
lated.

Student membters and ‘alumni worked diligently during-the spring
and summer of 1945 to make the project.known to Christian Scientists
throughout the state. The Christian Science Board of Directors in
Boston was kept informed, and gave their approval of all steps taken.
Also encouraging was the fact that the Dedication and Building Committee
of Churches of Christ, Scientist, Seattle, amended its rules to include
the Organization as a regular participant, so that a member of our
Executive Board now attends meetings of that Committee. In Septemter
1945, this Committee held an open meeting at Third Church at which the
entire program was devoted to the Organization's building needs.

As the school year progressed, activity increased. Contribu-
tions in growing amounts were received from friends and alumni all over
the State so that in June, 1946, the Organization was able to report to
the Tield with much joy and gratitude that the last payment had been made «

The rezular activities of the Organization during this year were
greatly stimulated by the rapid progress of the building project. luch

work was done toward getting more of the students who had registered
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their religious preference as Christian Science to ?eoome active in
the Organization. The annual lecture was given by Thomas I. Hurley,
C.S.B., and a Christian Science Monitor exhibit was held at Lagleson
H all in June, 1946, which was very successful.

In the sp ring of 1946, kncausé of the unprecedented post-var
increase in enrollment at the Univérsity, and the corresponding great
grovith in the Organization membership, it was decided to remodel and
furnish the old house to make it a Christian Science student center
vhich would be adequate for all Organization activities except the weekly
testimonial meetings. ‘

This work was done during the summer of 1946 at a cost of ap—
proximately %5,000. With the exception of the tasement, the entire
house was redecorated and the exterior was repainted. The first floor
was furnished to provide reading rooms and a lounge, vwith the kitchen and
sun porch serving as a lunch room. The second floor was converted to a
board room where the administrative work of the Organization could be
handled, an additional study room, and a suite of rooms for the resident
house mother. Three rooms on the third floor were furnished for use by
five young men, Organization members, who would maintain the house and
grounds in éeturn for their lodging. As a part of this remodeling, the
landscaping was greatly improved and a complete new lawm was planted.
Yany students, alumi, and friends gave of their time and labor through
work partiese.

The house was formally opened at the beginning of the fall
quarter, 1946. Mrs. Grace Mann was engaged to fill the position of
house mother and immediately entered into the spirit of the Organiza-

tions purpose to make the house 2 '"campus home" for all Christian



Scientists at the university. Several open houses for studants and
interested friends were held during the ensuing year.

Tvidences of the usefulness of the house tecame apparent at
once. It soon p roved necessary to enlarge the reading room facili-
ties to provide twelve sets of marked books for study of the weekly
Lésson—Sermons, as well as all the other authorized literature. A
cgreater feeling of unity within the Organization developed, while
growing recognition of the Organization by other student groups was
manifest. This was shovn, for example, by'the success of the Organi-
zation in obtaining over fifty subscriptioﬁs to The Christian Science
Yonitor among student organizations and faculty through the Publish-
ing Society's offer of special rates to college people. And most im-
portant, the memtership of the Organization increased steadily. By
the fall of 1947, the attendance at the Thursday evening meetings,
still held at the YMCA, ranged from one hundred to one hundred twenty-
five students and faculty members. To accormodate this increased attend-
ance it was necessary to obtain a larger room in the YMCA building.

In order to contimue the policy of maintaining the Organiza-
tion house by contributions of Organization members, as stated in
correspondence with The Mother Church, it was found necessary in the
vinter quarter of 1948, to amend the by-laws to authorize the taking
of a collection at the Thursday evening meetings. This new procedure
was primarily for convenience. The previous informal method of having
contributions placed in a box at the door as students left had proved
unsaticfactory as the box could easily Ut overlooked.

In January, 1948, an Ovwerseas Welfare Committee was formed,



and coniinued to serve until June, 19,8, for the purposec ol supplying
clothing to ncedy Christian Scientists in Germary . Used clothinﬁ,
generously donated by members of the Organization and other students,
was collected, repaired when necessary, and mailed to distribution
centers in Germany, addresses of which were obtained from The liother
Church. Approximately thirty, twenty—-two pound boxes were sent dur-
ing this period. The shipments were all pratefully acknowledged oy
officials at the distritution centerse

The Organization House again remained open throughout the
summer session of 19&8, as it had been the previous summer, and many
new students, enrolled at the University for special summer work, be-
came acquainted with the House and the Thursdey evening meetings.
Attendance at the Thursday meetings during this summer session was
remarkably high, necessitating the meetings teing held in the YIICA
instead of the Organization House, where they had been held the pre-
vious suImer.

During the school year 1948-L9, many steps were taken by - the
Invitations Committee to contact and arouse the hundreds of University
students listing Christian Science as their religious preference, to
an awareness of the activities of the Organization. The imwortance of
‘asizing these students to the testimonial meetings was stressed by hav-
ing several Thursday evening meetings specifically designated for this
purpose. Also, invitations weré sent to these students to attend
monithly social gatheringse. npiresides". were held throughout the year
cor the first time as a regular monthly occurrence at the House. At
these gatherings, lively get-acquainted games were played and light

refreshments served.
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The Invitations Cormittee also vrote a letter to cach
Srarch Church of Christ, Scientist, and Christian Séience Society
in Seattle, inviting upper—class Sunday School pupils and their
parents and teachers to attend designated Thursday evening meetings
and tc visit the House afterwards. The responses to these invitations
were enthusiastic, many new friends to the Organization wecre gained,
and the Thursday evening meetings on these occasions were particular-—
ly inspiring.

Another new and important step was initiated in 19l,8. Be-
tween the hours of 8:00 a.m..and 3:00 p.m. of each school day, mem—
bers of the Organization were designated to e at the House for periods
of one hour each to act as a receptionist, greeting new members and
answering the telephone. The member on duty was also to do metaphysi-
cal work on a specific topic assigned for a week, which appeared to be
the particular need of the Organization.

An important amendment to the ty-laws regarding membership
was made in 1948. Vhereas, previously, there had teen two classes of
members, active and alumni, the new amendment provides for three:
active, associate, and alumni. It stipulates only members of The
1other Church may be active memvers, eligible to vote and hold office.
The new classificetion, associate members, allows for memoers who are
not members of The Mother Church. These associate members may serve
on cormittees, Wit may neither vote nor hold office. This by-law
chiange was effected through a desire of the members to conform more
exactly to the provisions of Article 22, Section 6, of the Manual of
The Mother Church by Mary Baker Eddye |

During Religious DEmphasis Week, observed by the University in
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Fevruary, 1949, authorized speaiers from various religioué denominations
were invited to speak to classes, campus organizations, and living
groups, desiring such speakers. The subject emphasized was "What is
wan?' In fiwe instances, wherc a preference was offered to classes,
a Christian Science speaker was requested. One fraternity asked for
a speaker to explain the subject according to Christian Science. ALl
requests were filled ty Christian Scientists authorized Ly the Committee
on Publication for the State of Washington. Their talks were well re-
ceived oy the students and serious questions were asked, making possible
further explanation of Christian Sciencee.

The lecture in February, delivered by Mr. Earl lcCloud, was a
particularly joyous and fruitful occasion. The TUCA hall in which it
was given was filled, and many new p eople were seen, both students and

faculty memberse.
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The spring of 1949 brought another event of wide intorest to
Christien Science college organizations. Professor Ernest D. Engel, our
faculty sponsor and one of our Trustees, was invited to speak in The
liother Church on College Organizations at the Tuesday evening "Progress
in the Branches Meeting" during the Annual Meeting sessions. Circum-
stances leading up to this are rather signifiocant.

Our House is quite different from the few other Organization
houses on other campuses in that it has a more homelike atmosphere and
hence serves the students in fuller and more intimate ways. Operating
such a house brings pfoblems of adjustment of the individual students'
habits and wishes to the good of the whole group which are sometimes
diffioult to solve but are also very fruitful to both the student and
the Organization. The Mother Church, being aware of the pion;ering
nature of our work, sent the Trustees a letter in February, 1949, with
numerous questions as to the facilities of the House and how it wus meetiyg
the needs of the students and aiding the progress of the Organization.
The letter was read at a special meeting following a regular Thursday
evening meeting so that the members might express themselves in regard to
their feeling about the House. Their enthusiastio response prompted the
Trustées to suggest that they put their thoughts in writing so that the
Board of Directors in Boston might have first-hand information.

The report which was sent to The Directors included much
information - a reply from the Trustees, a lstter from the Housemother,
floor plans showing the use made of the various parts of the House, a
“picture of the House, many sincere and deeply moving statements from

students desoribing how the House and the Organization had helped them,
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and otner information. This report, coupled with the splendid workx done
by the Organization in recont years in obtaining and furnishing the House,
its fine showing in such things as obtaining e record number of student
subscriptions to the Monitor under the Publishing Sooiety's speoial offer
to college people, and other progressive activities, prompted the Board
of Directors in Boston to select our Organization to take part in the
Annual leeting to represent college orggnizations - the first time a
colle ge organization has so partioipated. Professor Engel's address was
reported in the Monifor on June 9, 1949, and the full text is printed in
the Sentinel of July 16, 1949. Many expressions of interest and appreoiaﬁop

were received from other Organizations.
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10,9 — 1007

Stenp by étcp during the neriod from 1949 to 1947 the Christian
Science Organization at the Unjversity of “ashington matured in iLs scnse
of the vroper use of the building wnich had been pdrchascd by icmbers and
friends in 19.5. As purchased and as initially remodeled, the old three-
story rcsidence remained unsuited for the Org's weeldly meetings. In the

early 1950's the house was overated with distinct social emphasis rather
than as a Christian Science religious center. Parents and friends formed
a patrons' grouv wﬁich aided with house maintenance and stood rcady to
sponsor parties or dinners for the studentse. A recreation room vas main-
tained in the building and the presence of the litchen eduipment encouraged
the eating of lunches there. Tie executive board found itself concerned
with paying for the milk deliveries and with setting the price to be charged
for a cup of cocoa. Only in occasional sumers were the Thursday testimony
meetings held in the Org's buildinge.

The school year 1954-1955 saw significant changes. The house-
boy system vas dropped and a "residenﬁ chaperone' replaced the house-
mother. Upkeep of the house and yard was assumed by a House Maintenance
Committee appointed from the membership. In the same vear the membership
voted unanimously to discontinue use of the baserent recreation room as
such. Milk delivery also ceased, but the ldtchen contime d to serve as
a lunchroom while committee activities and study areas remained on the
second floor. Another forward step in 1955 was discontinuance of monthly
membership die s which had formerly seemed to be a necessary scheme for
meeting operational expenses of the house.

These evidences of é trend toward use of the house for purposes

WEr e
more purely spiritual in naturgAconsummated just before the first Biemnial

College Organization meeting in Boston in 1955 The Org was represerited
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at that meeting and inspiration rcceived undoubtedly accelcrated
further changes in the functicn of the housc. late in the followdng
schonl vear the first regular Thursday cvening mecting was held in the
Ors's building. Plans to remodel the house for propcr accamodation of
the Thursday meetings were developed and in April, 1957, the long use
of Hagleson Hall for testimony mectings vas discontinued in favor of
using the Crg's house itself. This simplificd meeting vpreparations arrld
drew newcomers directly into the center of Org activity. Iembers of the
Org had done the remodeling worlk themselves and their effective trans-
fbrmation éf the main floor of the buildiﬁg admirably served the needs
of the Org‘during its remaining occupancy'of the structure. About 60
people could be conveniently seated for a meeting. In the later ycars
it was not uncormon for the attendance to exceed somevhat the scating
capacity éf the room.

In 1957. the top floor wvas secaled off to meet reauiremcnts of
the fire devartrent and the students made no further use of that area.
Ouarters for a chaperone contimed to Be maintained on the second floor,
Reduction of duties caused the position of chaperone to lose its salaried
status in 1962 and thereafter the chaperohe paid a small monthly rental
to the Orge. The title of the position was changed to "Resident Adviser"
in 1965.

Purely personal use éf the building had reached a relatively
low level by the 1960's. However, an expansion of one tyve of versonal
use was taldng plece through gradual increase in the amcunt of svace de-
voted to the parldng of students' cars. Finally, about 12 cars could te
accomodated., Yet,parldng accomod=tions were not out of phase with
recuiremen’s established by city ordinance for new structures in the

surrcunding urban area.
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Tn 1966-1967 the Org wook another significant step soward be-
caming a truc campus religious center for Christian Sciencce. 7The member-
shin voted to discourage the cating of lunches in ﬂhc building and ex-
vanded the neriod of “quiet hours" from a portion of the forcnoon to
include both morning and afternoon. This action followed carcful con-
sideration of ideas received from lMr. lHeard of the Collcge Crganization
Division in Boston. Thé step was made in time to gain experience that
would be helvful in forming nlans for the functioning of the new Org
building vhich was again under active consideration at that time.

The trend toward increased emphasis on the Org's mission as a
spiritual activity'forwardiﬁg the Christian Science movemnent Wwas accom-
panied by several chanses in the By-laws. Closer compliance with the
Fanual of The Mother Church was attained when the requircments for
graduate membership were reviewed in 1952, 1958, and 1962, and as a result
more graduate members becane active. Improved continuity in the conduct
of ~ Org business resulted from changes made in 1951 by which the terms
of the elective officers were staggered, thus elirinating the complete
renlacemnent of an executive board at. a single election. Voting pro-
cedure was also changed. By dropping the custom of reporting the number
of votes cast én each ballot for individual candidates, members became
more aware of the need far prayerful preparation for an election meeting.

The Rules and Regulaticns were also modified from time to time.
Cne of the important years of change was 1955-1656 when Library, Infor-
mation, Campus Literature and Bulletin Board committees were established.
This action further clarified the Org's role in giving service both to its

members and to the university community. Another important change

occurred late in 1958 when the practice of taking uo a collection during



the Thursday mcctiﬁg vas renlaced ihith an invitation to nlace contri-
butions "in a box near the dooris

Since the beginiing of the Biennial Meetings in Boston the Urg
has given its support to those meetings and in return has abundantly
benefited. Several nembers attended the first mecting in 1955, 9
went to Boston in 1957, 16 in 1963, and even larger groups in 1965 and
1967. A Boston Travel Fund established in 1956-1957 through contributions
of members and friends has aided some students to malie the trin cast.
Some recipients have subsequently reimbursed the fund in part of in full
for the financial assistence rendered to them. Participation in the pro-
gram at Bostoﬁ through displays and student papefs has becen the rule.
The inspiration and enthusiasm which characterize the Blennial lMeeting
Lave been evident in subsecuent Thursday evening meetings and in other
ways. One or more students reporting to branch churches and to other
groups of church members and friends has been a means of amplifying the
fruitage from the Biennial Meetingse. Direct use of ideas received at
Boston has been made. For example, after hearing how another Org had
nrepared a literature distribution box, the students here undertook a
similar project and from 1962 to 1967 the box was in impressively active
use on the corner of the Org's property at N.3. 43rd and 15th Ave. M.z,
Such a box became an imnortant feature of the new building plan.

The Riennial Meetings were but one of the means by iviiich the
Crg has realized increasing support from and a closer relation to The
}other Church arnd its Board of Directors in Boston. An early strength-
ening of cormunications between College Organizations and the {ield had

talken nlace (1951-1952) when College Organization Information Committees
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(COIC) were autherized. In some years the Org at the University of

-

“ashington has arranced a mecting of local CUIC members to increasc
their familiarity vith the Org's purpose and activities. Increased
contacts within the moveuent have also come froﬁ visits by represcenta-
tives of the College Orpanization Division in Boston and morec recently
fromvthc Regional Representative in San Francisco. These worlkers have
‘providcd inspiration through individual conferences, through group
workshops, and through meetings of church members and friends at local
branch churches. The year 196/,-1965 marked the appointment of a Local
Assistant\for western Hashingﬁon; His availability was opublicized at
heetings ard by voster and students:bcgan at once to make use of this
avenue for advice and help in Christian Science.

Concurrent with the growth of communication among the Org,
The Mother Church, and the branch churches was the continuation and
increase of the Org's efforts to communicate with the campus comaunity.
There has been continued sponsorship of an annual Christian Science
lecture and on one occasion, 1957, the lecture was given in the Student
Union Building. In each of four years, 1960, 1961, 1963, and 196. tvo
lecturcs were sponsored by the Orge. In 1951 the Org members voted to
join the Campus Religious Council. Org members varticipated in com-
mittee meetings of the Council, held Council offices including that of
president ard took part in the Religious “mphasis i’eek sponcored by the
CR%. The Org'!s facully adviser met with ministers and others comprising
the Religious Directors Association. This type of campus activity di-
minished following the Board of Regents' ruling that Religious Zmphasis
'eelc wms in violation of the Statc Constitution. In more recent :tars

incaming students have had an opportunity to learn about the Org through
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its decision to anpcar in "Activitics on Parade” at the ¢
subwmn Quarter. Occasional informative displays in a case in the

Stwient Union Building have provided another means'fbr rcachirg the
student vnonulation.

A sopecial onportunity for the Crg to serve the cormunity aroce
dwring the Seattle orld's Fair in 1962. Numerous Org members signed up
for duty in the Christian Scicnce building ot the Fair. Grcﬁth through
serving was joyously reported by students vho shared in this aclivity.

A further benefit arose at the conclusion of the Fair when several items
of furniture used at the exhibit were donated for use in the Org building.

Procuremeﬁt of a proper meeting place for the Org has been

given almost continuous atbention for many years. Temtative building
plans for a ﬁew structure on the Org's property on l5th MN.m. were con-
sidered and reconsidered. However, for one reason or another building
plans were repeatedly postponed as the Org moved through the 1950's and
into the 1960's. A period of concerted action was precipitated by.the
decision of the Building Trustees in 1965 to accede to the University's
persi.stent request for purchase of the Org's double lot. A provision
in the sale allowed the Org to use the property through the sumaer of
1967. After careful preparations wﬁich included presentation of the
proposed action to the head of the College Organization in Boston the
Trustees began a building fumd drive in March, 1966, Approval vas
received from Boston for the holding of as many as three open mcetings
a year directed toward offering a better understanding of the opurvose of
College Organizations, providing inspiration for the vork and giving
explanations of plans and progress to the field. An initial open

meeting was held in September, 1966, in Fourth Church, Seattle,
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